BG]Cs,

ASSOCIATES [LP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS? REPORTY
To the Members of 1. Engineecing Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Finsieinl Statemenis

We have audited the accompanying standzlone Ind AS financial statements of PL Engineering
Limited (“the Company™), whicl) comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 51, 201 8, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive [ncome), the Statement of Cash Tlows, the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Siandstone Ind AS Finanecial Stalements

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Ihe Act”) will respect fo the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Cempany in
accordance with the accounling principles gencrally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specitied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rulzs, 2014 (as amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with (he provisions ol the Act for saleguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting [rauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent: and design, inplementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively [or ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS fnancial statements
that give a true and Tair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these slandalone Ind AS Fnancial statements based on
our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions ol the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the stndalone Ind AS financial statemeuts in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specificd undee Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethicul requircments and plan wnd perturm e sudit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone Ind AS Finaneal Stalements are tree from material misstatement
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone [ad AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal {inancial control relevant to the Compasy’s preparation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statemcnts.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best ol our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give o true and fair view in conlormily with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2018, its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Governmenl of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
“Annexure 17, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(2) Asrequired by Section 143(3) ol the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audig;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Stalement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account; :

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specilied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rufe 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);




d. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March31,2018, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over [inancial reporting of the

Company and the operating cffectiveness of such controls, we give our separate Report in
“Annexure 2”.

£ With respect to the other matlers o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position,
as detailed in Note 32 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, il any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts, as detailed in Note 36 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements;

tii.  The company did not have any dues on account of fnvestor Education and Protection
Fund;

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 603304N

Prai;av Jain
Partner
Membership No.098308

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 30, 2018



Annexure 1 to Independent Auditoss” Report

(Referred to in paragraph on Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the
Independent Auditors’ Report ol even date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the
information and explanations given (o us and the books of account and other records examined by us
in the normal course of audit, and to ihe best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i)

(i)

(iiD)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment,

(b)  During the year, the fixed assels of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assefs.

(¢)  The Company does not have any Immovable property. Accordingly, the provisions of
' clause 3(i)}(c) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of
the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses
3(iii)(a), 3(i)(b), 3(ii)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the provisions ot clause 3(iv) of the order are not applicable since during the
year, the Company has not eatered into transaction covered under the sections 185 and 186
of the Act.

In our opinion, the Company las not accepted any deposits from the public within the
provisions of Scctions 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any
of the products/ activitics of the Company under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act
and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order are
not applicable.

(a)  Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, have not been regularly
deposited to the appropriate authority and there have been significant delays in a
large number of cases. Further, no material undisputed amounts payable in respect
thercof, were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b)  The dues outstanding with respect to sales tax, scrvice tax, value added tax, entry tax,
customs duty, excise duty on account of any dispute, are as follows:




(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

{(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Name of the | Mafure | Amount Period to | Forum where
statuie of dues | Disputed | which " | dispule is pending
Rs. relates ‘

The Finance Act, | Service | 46,13,189 1 2010-11  to | The Additional

1994 and  The | Tax (nif  under | 2013-14 Commissioner,

Service Tax protest) Service . Tax

Rules. Comumissionerate,
Delhi-IV.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or botrowings to banks. There are no
dues 1o a financial institution or government. The company did not have any outstanding
debenture during the ycar and as at the year end.

The Company has neither raised money by way of public issue offer nor has obtained any
term loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year covered by our audit,

The company has not paid/provided for any Managerial remuneration, Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the arder are not applicable.

In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable and the requisite details have been disclosed
in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions
of clause 3{xiv) of the Order arc not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not enfered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with hin under section 192 of the Act.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

TFor BGJC & Associales LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.003304N
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Praay Jain

Partner

Membership No. 098308
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Date: May 30,2018
Place: Gurugram



Annexure 2 to Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in paragraph under report on others Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in
Independent Auditors” Report of even date to the members of PL. Engineering Limited on the standalone
Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018.

Independent Auditors’ report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the companies act 2013 “the Act”

We have audited the internal finarcial controls over financial reporting of PL Engineering Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in counjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended on that date.

Managemen{’s Responsibility lor Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsibic for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financia! Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, Implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibilily is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting.  Those
Standards and the Guidance Nole require thal we comply with ethical requiremenls and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our aundit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, asscssing the risk that a material weakness exists, and festing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate Lo pmwde a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internat financial controls system over financial ref




Meaning of Internal Financial Conlrols over Financial Reporiing

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permut preparation of standalone Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepfed accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ozly in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Limitations of internal financial controls over Ninancial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
ervor or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods arc subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, iz all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporling were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the inlernal conlrol over financial reporling criteria
established by the Company considering (he essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Tor BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pran”if{; Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

Date: May 30,2018
Place: Guragram



PL, Engineering Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
¢ Ali amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

As at
Particalars Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment's 4 949,916 4,614,824
Intangible assets 5 5,858,436 11,439.873
Financial Assets
Investments 6 32,633,245 57,987,902
Loans 7 - «
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 8 - -
Other non current assets 9 - -
39,441,597 74,042,599
Current assefs
Inventories - Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress) 26,511,540 314,135,943
Financial Assets
Investment held for Sale 10 155,576 155,576
Trade receivables 3! 56,964,464 614,072,460,
Cash and cash equivalents 12 23,558,298 21,899,687
Loans and advances 7 5,350,851 91,994,975
Current Tax Assets (Net) i3 20,034,469 49 748,552
{Other current assets 9 3,295.20% 16,464 743
135,870,407 1,108,471,936
Total Assets 175,312,004 1,182,514,535
LQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 13 62,250,000 62,250,000
Other Equity
Equity component of Convertibie Cumulative Preference Shares 200,050,000 200,050,000
Others reserves (264,006,502) 244 901,556
Total Equity {1,706,502) 507,261,556
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 - 836,686
Provisions 15 2,112,114 27,718,861
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 8 N E
2,112,114 28,555,547
Current labilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 - 34 839,874
Trade payables 17 168,851,249 499,331,851
Other Financiat Liabilities 18 0 590,183
Other current liabilities 19 5,601,446 84 745,590
Provisions 15 453,697 27,249,934
Total Linbitities 174,908,392, 646,757,432
Total Lquity and Liabilities 175,312,004/ 1,182,514,535

Summary of significant accounting policies 1,2&3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial staterments
This is the Standalonie Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chartered Accountants PL Engineering Limited
Firm Registration Number: §03304N ‘i} R ¢ \
F . i £
- "“’W;M?“ AL
o Rahul Mahashwari Atul Punj

Pranay Jain Director Director % \
Partner DIN; 07345645 DIN: 000 : 12 \ - y
Membership Number:.098308 glﬁ F"{@ME«. { M//»%}\ .
Place : Gurugram Rohit Mehta Sameet P Sashidharan
Date : May 30, 2013 Chief Financial Ofticer Company Secretary

M. No: A13600



PL Engineering Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amount in INR, unless otherwise stafed)

Year ended
Notes March 31, 2018 March 3%, 2017

Income
Revenue from operations
Sale of services 65,559,893 594,747,400
Other income 20 16,344,466 3,132,945
Teotal income 81,904,359 597,880,345
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 21 243,786,917 392,992,403
Finance costs 23 2,741,519 17,128,334
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 8,191,872 16,378,841
Other expenses 22 323,155,682 393,580,724
Total expenses 577,881,990 820,080,302
Loss before tax (495,977,631) (222,199,957
Tax expenses

Current tax - -

Mat Entitlement 20,198,379 “

Tax for Previous Year (6,113,734) -
Total tax expense 14,084,645 -
Loss for the year (510,062,276) (222,199,957)
Other Comprehensive Income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss,
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 26,508,875 13,403,050
Net (losses) gains on FVTOCI equity instruments {25,354,657) 73,822,364
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (vefer note 1,154,218 87,225,414
no. 08)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (508,908,058) (134,974,543)
Earnings per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 18 each
{Previous year Rs. 10}]
Basic and Diluted {in) 24 (85.94) {35.69)
Summary of significant accounting policies 12&3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred 10 in our report of even date.

For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants PL Engineering Limited

Firm Registration Number: 003304N R
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Pranav Jain

Rahul Mahashkwari Atul Pugj ]
Partner . Director Directar 1% i
Membership Number: 098308 IDIN: 07345645 DIN;/60095612.

Place : Gurugram
Date ; May 30,2018

~ﬁﬁn Hebde. {”f?/’ |
! Rohit Mehta Sam:’:‘ér S sh;dharan

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M. No: A13600
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PL Engineesing Limited
The Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Cash flow from operating activities
Laoss before tax {495,977,631) (222,199,95T)
MNon-cash adjustment to reconcile Joss)/profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expensc 8,191,872 16,378,841
Loss/ (Gain) on sale of fixed assets {net) 164,744 (355,079
Gain on sals foreign currency transactions {79,599} _
Bad debts written off 227,018,293 233,160,006
Interest expense 2,231,212 14,621,172
Operating profit before working capital changes {258,451,509) 41,604,983
Changes in working capital ;
Increase in trade payables {330,479,036) (30,032,545)
Tncrease/(Decresse) in provisions (25,894,109) 9,462,513
{(Decrease)/ Increase in other current Habifities (79,144,144) (9,595,942)
Increase in trade receivables 486,744,568 36,618,781
Decrease in loans and advances 86,644,124 23,095,544
Decrease/([ncrease} in unbilied revenue (work-in-progress) 130,969,538 (73,132,590}
Increase in other current assets 13,169,534 {4,301,601)
Cash generated from operations 23,558,966 {6,280,8506),
Direct taxes refunded/ (paid) 15,629,444) {4,146,357)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 39,188,406 (10,427,214}
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (269,325)
Purchase of fixed a (1,082,151) (21,560,700)
Proceeds from sale of investment in Subsidiaries - 133,558,664
Proceeds [rom sale of fixed assets 888,163 359,100
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) {193,988) 112,087,739
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,413,033} {1,974,597)
{(Repayment of)/ Proceeds from short-term borrowings {net) (34,839,874 (84,848,719}
Interest paid (2,245,048) {14,641,245)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) {38,497,955) {101,464,561)
et decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 496,463 195,964
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginniag of the year (Refer note no. 12) 338,987 143,023
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 835,450 338,987

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Standalone Staternent of Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.

For BGJC & Associates LLT
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0603304N

e

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership Number: 098308

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 30, 2018

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
PL Engineering Limited

m& P UY AN MV;
M

Rahul Mahashwari
Director
DIN: (7345645

Rohit Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Sameer P Sashidharan
Company Secretary
M. No: A13600



PL Engineering Limited
Notes to financial statements year ended Mar 31, 2018
(All amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

PL Engineering Limited {‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956, {Revised) which has since been replaced with Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in the business of rendering Engineering and
Design Consultancy Services. The Company caters to both domestic and international markets.

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 30, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared and comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

(ii) Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and historical cost basis, except for the following:

Certain financial assets and ¥Habilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value;
Certain items of property, plant and equipments which have been fair valued on the transition date

The Company has appiied the same accounting policies for preparing its opening Ind AS financial statements and all subsequent periods presented in
these financial statements.

{b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS (Generally accepted accounting principles) requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Iiabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,

uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabiliiies in future periods.

(c) Property, plant and equipments

Tangible assets are stated at cost, net off accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price,
borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and afl expenses, direet and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its
working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in amiving at the purchase price. The Company considered the
previous GAAP carrying cost of plant and equipments as deemed cost, as the fair value of these assets does not differ materially from its carrying cost.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing tangible assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the sfaternent of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of tangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are de-recognised.
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(d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of infangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are derecognised.

For the transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as on Aprit 1, 2015
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

{e) Depreciation on property, plant and cquipments and amortisation en intangible fixed assets
Depreciation on property, plant and equipments is caloulated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives prescribed under
Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has used the following lives to provide depreciation.

Particulars Useful Life (In years)
Computer hardware 3

Network and servers 6

Fumniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles * 5

Office equipment 3

Computer software 6

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by external valuers the management believes
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets
is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

() Component accounting

The Company was previcusly not identifying components of fixed assets separately for depreciation purposes; rather, a single useful iife/ depreciation
rate was used to depreciate each ftem of fixed asset. Now, the Company identifies and determines separate useful life for each major component of the
fixed asset, if they have useful life that is materiatly different from that of the remaining asset. However, this change in accounting policy did not have
any material impact on financial statements of the Company.

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing vaiue in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken inte account, if available, If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation modet is used.

The Comgany bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared sepazately for each of the Company’s
cash-generating units o which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calcuiations are generally covering a period of five years.
For longer periods, & long term growth tate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the mast recent budgets/ forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the products, industries or couniries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

[mpairment losses of continuing operaticns, including impeirment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment
toss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. The reversal is fimited so that the carrying ameunt of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the camrying amount that
would have been, had no impairment loss been recognized. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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(h) Leases
Where the Company is the lessee

Lease where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding tental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabifities as appropriate. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 50 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalized irt accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs (see note 2.(k)).

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will
obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the lease term of the asset.

1.eases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company, as lessee, are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increase.

(I} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borowing costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost alse includes exchange
differences fo the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(j) Foreign currency
i) Functional and presentation currengy

tems included in the financial statements are measused using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

ii) Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences resulting from the settlement or translation of such transactions are generally recognized in profit or loss, except the following;

a. Exchange differences are deferred in equity if they are atiributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. They are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income (OCI) and reclassified to statement of profit and loss on disposal of the net investment, as part of gain or loss on disposal.

b. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items (recognized upto March 31, 2016), telated to acquisition of a depreciable
asset are capitalized and depreciated aver the remaining useful life of the asset.

Noi-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign curency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the
tramsaction, Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
valie was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or
loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). '

iii) Translation of foreign operatiens

The results and financial position of foreign aperations that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

« Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate of exchange at the reporting date,

- Income and expenses are translated at quarterly average exchange rates (usless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transaction), and

» All resulting exchange differences are recognized in OCL
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recogaized in profit or loss.
Cumulative currency {ranstation differences for ali foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of transition, i.e. April 01, 2015. Gain or loss ona

subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the date of transition but comprises only translation
differences arising after the transition date.
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(k) Financial instruments

Financial Instruments (assets and liabilities) are recognized when the Company becomes a party to a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atfributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial labilities, other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}, are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in staternent of profit and loss.

A. Financial assets

(i) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial assets.

O Amortised cost; Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principat and
interest are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. The EIR amertisation is included in other income in the
statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

{1 Fair vaiue through otlier comprehensive income (FYTOCI): The Company has investments which are not held for frading. The Company has
elected an itrevocable option to present the subsequent changes in fair vatues of such investments in other comprehensive income. Amounts recognized
in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the siatement of profit and loss.

{1 Fair vaiue through profit and lass (FVTPL): FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets in the nature of debt instruments. Financiai assets
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category also

inciudes derivative financial instruments, if any, entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109.

(ii} Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies Ind AS 109 for recognizing impairment losses using Expected Credit Loss {(ECL) model. Impairment is recognized for ail
financial assets subsequent to initial recognition, other than financial assets in FVTPL category. The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in
statement of profit and loss.

{iil} De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the same are transferred.

B. Finarcial liabilities
(i) Subsequent measurement

There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial liabilities.

[ Amartised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium o acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

[1 Financial liabilities a¢t FYTPL: Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial Habilities are held for trading or are designated as
FVTPL on initial recognition, Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments eatered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
refationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on fHabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

(i) De-recognition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires
C. Offsetting financial instruments :

Financial assets and financial !iabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(I} Fair value measurement

The fair value of an asset or liabitity is measured using the assumption that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabifity, assuming
that market participants act in their best economic interest. ’

The Company uses valuation techriques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair vafue is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as foliows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Where fair value is based on quoted prices from active market.
Level 2 — Where fair value is based on significant direct or indirect observable market inputs.
Level 2 — Where fair value is based on one or more significant input that is aot based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company detesmines whether transfers is required
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) (a) on the date of the event or change in circumstances or {b) at the end of each reporting period.

{m) Tmpioyee benefits
Shori-term obligations
Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits, that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in

which the employees render the related service are recognized up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
on settlement of such fiabilities. The liabilities are presented as cumrent employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term emplovee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned and sick leave are not expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service. They are therefors measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit eredit method. The bhenefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of
the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The obligations are presented as current iabilities in the balance sheet since the Company does not have an unconditionat right to defer the seftlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
0 Defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, and
{1 Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and pension fund

Gratuity obligations

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees employed in India. The Company has obtained group gratuity scheme policies from
Life Insurance Corporation of India and ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Compary Lirited to cover the gratuity liability of these employees. The
difference in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the ead of the reporting period is recognized as a
liability or asset, as the case may be, in the balance sheet. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually on the basis of actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. :

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in the employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. .

Re-measurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they
aceur, directly in OCL

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting ffom plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or
loss as past service cost,

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution to statutory provident fund and pension funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized
as empioyee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
fusture payments is available,

Employee benefits in overseas locations

In overseas branches and unincorparated joint venture operatior, provision for retirement and other employee benefits are recognized as prescribed in the
local labour laws of the respective country, for.the accumulated period of service at the end of the financtal year. P

e
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(n) Income Tax
[ncome tax comprises current income tax and deferred tax. The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable

income, based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction where the Comparty operates, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributed to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Curfent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax faws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generate taxable income.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, anly if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilize those temporary differences and tosses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at sach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be avaitable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognized fo the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset {f a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against liabiiities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabikities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the fiability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OCI or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is recognized in OCI or directly in equity, respectively.

(0) Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information 15 available that is evaluated regularly by the
chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

(p) Larnings per share

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or foss aftributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financiat year, adjusted for the events such as bonus issue, share split or otherwise that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding without a correspending change in resources.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss attributable (o equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of alt dilutive potentiat equity shares.

{q) Share-based payment arrangements

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation model. The fair value of the options granted is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding inerease in
equity. The totaf amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the option granted:

= inchuding any market performance conditions (e.g., the Company’s share price),

» excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g., profitability, sales growth targets and remaining and
employes of the entity over a specified time pericd), and

« including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g., the requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specific period of time),

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revizes its estimates of the number of optiens that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision o original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

(r} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of cash flow statement, comprise cash or: hand, demand depusits, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months ar less that are readily convertible to known ameunts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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(s) Dividends

The Company recognized a liability for the amount of any dividend declared when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the
diseretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders.

(t) Contingent liabilities

A vontingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one
or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent Habitity also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

A disclosure is made for a contingent liability when there is a:

a) possible obligation, the existence of which will be confirmed by the occurrence/non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events, not fully with in the
control of the Company,

b) present ohligation, where it is not probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo settle the obligation;

¢) present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot be made.

{u) Pravisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probabie that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation.

Where the effect of the time valus of money is expected to be material, provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

{v} Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivaients and the same is
considered as project period.

{w) Unbilled revenue (work in progress)

Unbilled revenue { work in progress) is valued at net realisable value, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cousse of
business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(x) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
regardiess of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
conttactually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met befors revenue is recognized

Income from services
Revenues from services comprise of income from man - hour rate {time basis) contracts and fixed price contracts.

Revenues associated with services rendered on time basis is recognised when the services are rendered. The same is calculated based on the man hours
incurred for rendering the services.

Revenue from fixed price contracts (including maintenance and support contracts) is recognised by reference to the stage of the service contract at the
balance sheet date. The stage of completion is the propertion of the contract costs ncurred for the werk performed up to the balance sheet date to the
estimated total contract costs. However, profit is not recognised unless there is reasonable progress on the coniract. If total cost of a contract based on
technical and other estimates, is estimated to exceed the total contract revenue, the foreseeable loss is provided for. The effect of any adjustment arising
from revisions to estimates is included in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which revisions are made. Excess / shortfall of revenue over that
billed as at the year end is caried in the financial statements as unbilled revenue and biiling in excess of contract revenue is shown under current
liabilities a5 advance bitling to custemer in the financial statement. The Company coliects service tax on behalf of the government and therefore, there
are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Herice, they are excluded from revenue.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is
established by the reporting date.
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Export benefit

Export benefit under the duty free credit entitfement is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the right to receive license as per the terms of
the scheme is established in the respect of export made and there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimaie coliection of the export proceeds.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exacily discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carying amount of the financial assets or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering ali the contractual terms of the financial
instruement, but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of Profit and Loss.

3. Significant acconnting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
period,

Critical estimates and judgements

In applying the accounting policies, following are the items/ areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity and which are mare likely to
be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of firture evenis
that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair valuation of unlisted securities:

The fair value of financial insiruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using internationally accepted valuation principles. The
inputs ta these vatuations are taken from observable markets wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as discount rates, liquidity risk, credit risk, earning growth factors and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

Revenue recognition:
The Company uses the percentage-of-compietion method (POCM) in accounting for its long term construction contzacts. Use of POCM requires the

Company to estimate the total cost to complete a contract, Changes in the factors underlying the estimation of the total contract cost could affect the
amount of Tevenue recognized. .

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company basis the impairment provisions for financial assets on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calcufations, based on the Company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward jocking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Imprirment of non-financial assets:

MNon-financial assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not
be recoverable, If any such indieation exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). The recoverable amount is sensitive to inputs like discount rate, expected future cash-inflows and growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined henefit plan {employee henefits):

The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and other employee benefits and the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined using
actuariaf valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fiture. These include
the determination of the discount rate, fusure salary increase and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assemptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Taxes:

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to defermine the amount of defesred tax asset that cen be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with fiture tax planning strategies.

The Company neither has any texable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could support the recognition of unused tax
losses and unabsorbed depreciation as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Comparny has accounted for deferred tax assets on temporary differences,
including unabsorbed depreciation and business lesses, to the extent of deferred tax liability recognized as at the batance sheet date, for which it is
reasonably ceriain that future taxable income would be generated by reversal of such deferred tax liability.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign cumency trangactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA"} has
notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rutes, 2018 countaining Appendix B to [nd AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense of income, when an ¢ntity has received or paid advance congideration in a foreign currency. The amendment wili come into force
fram April ¢, 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the financial statements and the impact is not material,

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Coniract with Customers; On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind A8 115, Revenue
from Contract with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expecis to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, fiming and uncertainty of reveaue and cash flows arising from the
entity’s contracts with customers. The standard permits two possible methods of transition;» Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard
will be applied retrospectively to each prier reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors * Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized a¢ the date of initial application (Cumulative
cateh - up approach)The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after Aprit 1, 2018. The Company will adopt the
standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumuative catch-up transition method and accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31,
2018 witl 1ot be reiraspectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant.

{this space has been intentionally left blank)
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4, Property, Plant and Equipments

Particuiars Computer Furniture and Vehicles Office Total
hardware fixtures equipment

Gross bieck

As at March 31, 2016 48,400,555 2,478,717 16,328,128 6,289,113 73,496,505

Additions during the year 269,325 - - - 269,325

Disposals during the year (4,966.,289) - - - (4,966,289

As at March 31, 2017 43,703,591 2,478,717 16,328,120 6,289,113 68,799,541

Additions during the year - - -

Disposals during the year - - (16,328,120) - (16,328,120)
As at March 31, 2018 43,703,551 2,478,717 - 6,289,113 52,471,421
Accumulated depreciation
As at March 31, 2016 44,512,623 1,382,976 12,655,272 5,837,874 64,388,745
Charge for the year 2,405,299 293,922 2,015,649 43,370 4,758,240
Disposals during tie year (4,962,268) - - - (4,962 268}
As at March 31, 2017 41,955,654 1,676,398 14,670,921 5,881,244 64,184,717
Charge for the year 1,513,050 451,291 604,292 43,369 2,612,002
Dispasals during the year - - (15275213} - {15275213)
As at March 31, 2018 43,468,704 2,128,189 - 5,924,613 51,521,506
Net block
As at March 31, 2017 1,747,937 301,819 1,657,199 407,569 4,614,824
As at March 31, 2018 234,888 350,528 - 364,500 949,916
5. Intangibie assets

Software Total
Gross black
As at March 31, 2016 129,440,903 129,446,903
Additions during the year - -
As at Mareh 31, 2017 129,440,903 129,440,903
Additions during the year - -
As at Varch 31, 2018 129,440,903 129,440,903
Accumulated amortisation
As at March 31, 2016 106,380,429 106,380,429
Charge for the year 11,620,601 11,620,601
As at March 31,2017 118,001,030 118,001,030
Charge for the year 5,581,437 5,581,437
As at March 31, 2018 123,582,467 123,582,467
Net block
As at March 31, 2017 11,439,873 11,439,873
As'at March 31,2018 5,858,436 5,858,436

a. for assets pledged as security, refered note no 14 and "Nii" capital commitments

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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6. Non-current investments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
Mareh 31, 2017

Fair Value through Othes Comprehensive Income (Fully Paidup)
Investment in subsidiaries (unquoted equity)

Punj Lloyd Engineering Pte Limited

1 (previous year: 1} equity shares of SGD 1 each

AeroEuro Engineering India Private Limited
2,500,000 (previous year: 1,250,000} equity shares of T 10 each

Investment in joint ventures
PLE TCI Engenharia LTDA.
245,000 (previous year: 245,000) equity shares of T 10 each

Total

32,633,243

I

57,987,900

32,633,245

57,987,902

Aggregate carrying value of urquoted investments

7. Loans & Advanees

32,633,245

57,987,902

As at March 31, 2018
Non-current Current

Particufars

As at March 31, 2017

MNon-current

Current

Loan and advances to related parties
Unsecured, considered good )
Advances to subsidiaries - 2,264,576
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances to subsidiaries

Advance to joint venfare -
Less - Expected Credit Loss

14,640,676
(14,640,676}

Interest receivable on loan given to Joint Venture
Less - Expected Credit Loss

Consideration recaivable for licenses sold* -

Loan and advances to others
Unseenred, considered good

Security deposits - 3,086,275

1,780,482

- 14,640,676
(14,640,676)

87,128,218

3,086,275

Total - 5,350,851

91,994,975

8. Deferred tax (net)

* The same is Self Financing incentive scheme which is accounted in the books of accounts as and when sold to Helding Company.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Deferred tax asset

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss
in the current year but atlowable for tax purposes on payment basis
Others

Unabsorbed tax losses#

Gross deferred tax assets

1,601,972

1,277,399

13,289,815

1,601,972

14,567,214

Deferred tax liability
Property. Plant and Equipments & Intangible assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through OCI

1,608,972

593,358
13,973,856

Giross deferred lax liability
WNet Deferred tax liabiliey

1,601,972

14,567,214

# The Company has accounted for deferred tax assets on temporary differences, including those on unabsorbed depreciation and business losses, fo the
extent of deferred tax liability recognized at the balance sheet date, for which it is reasonably certain that future taxable income would be generated by

reversal of such deferred tax liability.
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9, Other Assets (Non Current/Current)

Particul As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

articnlars Non-current Current MNon-current Current
Qther loans and advances

Prepaid expenses 181.739 5.755.073
Balances with statutory/ government authorities 3,029,247 9,174,329
Advances recaverable in cash or kind

Advance to suppliers - - 1,368,961
Advance to employees - 84,223 - 146,221
Others - - 20,159
Toftal - 3,295,209 - 16,464,743

(this space kas been infentionally left blank}
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18, Tnvestment held for sale:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Investments held for sale
PL Delta Technologies Lirnited 1 H
50,000 (previous year: 50,000) equity shares of 7 10 each.
PLE TCI Engineering Limited 155,575 155,575
24,500 (previous year: 24,500) equity shares of T 10 each.
Total 155,576 155,376
Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments 155,576 {55,576
11. Trade receivables
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Unsecured , Considered Good
Receivable from refated parties 1,274,660 583,429,829
Receivable from others 55,689,804 30,642,631
Unsecured , considered doubtful
Receivabie from retated parties
Receivable from others
Less: Provision for expected credit loss
Total 56,964,464 614,072,460
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balances with banks:
— in current accounts 802,220 338,432
— in exchange earner’s foreiga currency account 163 555
Cash on hand 33,065 -
835,448 338,987
Other bank balances
Fixed Deposit with Bank* 6,430,351 5,348,200
Depoasit in Escrow account on account of SCEL sale consideration 16,292,459 16,212,500
Total 23,558,298 21,899,687
*Deposit of 100% margin is given to bank for issuing the various Bank Guarantess.
13. Current Tax Asset - Net
. As at Asat
Particutars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Minimum altemative {ax credit entitlement - 20,198,377
Advance tax 20,034,469 29,550,175
Tatal 20,034,469 49,748,552

fthis space has been intentionally left biank)
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13, Equity Share capital
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Authorised share capital

16,000,000 (Previous year: 10,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 100,000,000 100,000,000

20,005 (Previous year: 26,005} 0.0001% Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of ¥ 10,000 each 200,050,000 200,050,000
360,056,000 300,050,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

6,225,000 {Previous year: 6,225,000) equity shares of T 10 each 62,250,000 62,250,000

20,005 {Previcus year: 20,005) 0.0001% CCPS of 10,000 each 200,050,000 200,050,000

Total issued, subseribed and fuily paid-up share capital 262,300,000 262,300,000

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Nos, Amount Nos. Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning and at the end of the year 6,225,000 62,250,000 6,225,000 62,250,000
Cumuiative Convertible Preference share (CCPS)
At the beginning and at the end of the year 20,005 200,050,000 20,005 200,056,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Comgany declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting,

in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares wili be entided to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion of number of equity shares heid by the shareholders.

() Terms of conversion / redemption of CCPS

In the event of winding up, liquidation or dissolution of the Company or a saie of all or substantiaily all assets of the Company following the enforcement
of the security, Punj Lioyd Limited {referred hereinafler as promoter) and Fidelity India Principals and FIL Capital Management {Mauritius) Limited
{collectivety referred hercinafter as investor) shatl both be entitled, in preference to any other sharehoider of the Company, to receive an amount equivalent
to the aggregate amount invested by each of the investor and the promoter, respectively, in the Company (from time to time), in each case increased by ()
ant internal rate of return of 25% calcuiated from the respective dates of the investment(s) and (if) any accrued and unpaid dividends from the proceeds of
such winding up or liquidation, prior to any distribution to any other shareholders of the Company.

In addition, to the extent that there are assets of the Company available for distribution after payment to the investor and the promoter, each of the
shareholders of the Company (including the investor and the promoter) shall thereafler share in the distribution of such remaining assets of the Company
in proportion to their shareholding in the Company at the time of their liquidation.

In the event that the aggregate proceeds available for distribution ameng the shareholders are inadequate, the Investor and the promoter shall both be
entitled, in preforence to any other shareholder of the Company, to receive amounts in proportion ta their liquidation preference amounts.

Holders of preference shares shall be entitled fo a dividend of 0.6001% per annum, payable on an annual basis. The dividends on the preference shares for

the concemned period shall at all times be declared in seniority to the dividends on equity shares of the Company. The Company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees.

The Investor shall have the option to convert any number of preference shares into equity shares during the term of this agreement. However, on 2
November 2020 (i.e., at the expiry of 180 days from the tenth anniversary of the Completion Date), without any approval of the shareholders, prior to or at
the time of conversion, ail preference shares that are outstanding as of such date shall immediately and automatically convert into one fully paid and nor -
assessable equity share.

(d) Shares held by Holding company

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Punj Lloyd Limited (Holding Company) 50,000,000 50,000,060
5,000,000 (2017: 5,000,000) equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up
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{e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up .
Punj Lloyd Limiied 5,000,000 80.32% 5,000,000 80.32%
FIL Capital Management (Mauritius) Limited 1,066,955 17.14%) 1,066,955 17.14%
CCPS of ¥ 10,000 each fully paid up
FIL Capital Management (Mauritius) Limited 19,855 99.25% 19,855 99.25%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharehoiders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(f) No bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other than cash or shares bought back over the last five years immediately

(g) Refer Note 23 for details on employee stock option plans.

(this space has been intentionally Jeft bank)
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14. Long-term horrowings

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Particulars Non-current Current maturities Non-current Current
portion portion maturities

Term loans (Secured)
Vehicle loan from banks - - 236,686 576,347
Amount disclosed under the head “other financial iiabilities” - - - {576,347)
(note 18)
Total - - 836,680 -

Terms of security and repayment

Secured by first charge by way of hypothecation over vehicies financed by Axis Bank Limited and further by corporate guaraniee from Purj Lloyd
Limited, the Holding Company for vehicles financed by State Bank of India. Average rate of interest on term loans ranges from 9.85% to 12.25% p.a.

on reducing balance method. Average repayment schedule ranges from 3 to 5 years.

15. Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Long-term Short-term Long-term Shori-term
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 1,261,009 68,415 16,585,472 5,455,040
Leave Encashment 633,590 287,549 11,133,389 5,060,816
Other 215,515 97,733 - 12,608,100
Other provisions
Provision for contract losses (note 37) - - - 4,133,978
2,112,114 453,697 27,718,861 27,249,934
14, Short-term borrowings
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Loan Repayable on Demand (Secured)
From Bank (Cash Credit) - 34,839,874
- 34,839,874

In previous year cash credit facilities are secured by first charge over all present and future book debts/receivables of the current and coflaterat
security over first charge over all the fixed assets of the Company and further secured by corporate guarantes of Punj Lioyd Limited, the
Holding company. The cash credit are repayable on demand and carries interest at base rate +6.8% per annum, te., 15.10 % as at March 31, 2017,

During the year cash credit facilities are discontinued.

17. Trade Payables

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Trade Payables 168,851,249 499,331,851
Total 168,851,249 499,331,851
The company has not received the required information from suppliers/ parties regarding their status under the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprises Develapment Act 2006 . The company believes that they have not entered any transaction with the parties
covered under Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Hence required disclosures have been given to
the extent information is available with the company.
18.0ther Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Other Payables
Current maturities of long term borrowings {note 14) - 576,347
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 13,836
Total - 590,183
19. Other current liabilities
Particulars . Asat As at
viarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Statutory dues 4038913 26,639,513
Advance from customers 1,562,533 44 904 457
Advance billing to customers - 13,201,620
Total 5,601,446 84,745,590

(this space has been intentionally {eft blank)
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10, Other income

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Scrap Sale 437,521 194,100
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations 9,519,792 1,296,872
Gain on sate of fixed assets (net) - 355,079
Interest on Fixed Deposits 425,119 -
Interest on income fax refund 5,962,034 1,286,894
16,344,460 3,132,945
21, Lmployee benefits expense
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Safaries, wages and benus 233,256,955 369,238,810
Contribution to provident and other funds 7,880,279 15,609,899
Gratuity expense (note 26) 1,775,150 5,024,681
Staff welfare expenses 874,533 3,119.013
243,786,917 392,992,403
22 Other expenses
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2618 March 31, 2017
Power and fuel - 4,455,167
Rent 40,000,000 66,296,331
Insurance 5,104,348 4,254,085
Repair and maintenance 68,400 1,390,39C
Software maintenance cost 12,639,193 42.264,316
Office expenses 87,784 5,061,949
Travelting and conveyance 1,847,048 3015456
Printing and stationery 1,946,337 3,412,334
Consultancy and professional 32,352,652 24,365,022
Payment to auditor (refer details below) 737,492 884,926
Bad debt (net) 70,363,428 -
Contractor charges 104,921 2,398,589
Rates and taxes 478,740 806,170
Loss on sale of fixed assets {net) 164,744 -
Unbilled revenue written off 156,654,865 233,160,006
Recruitment - 265,385
Postage and telegram 576,474 851,228
Miscellaneous Expenses 29,257 689,371
323,155,682 393,580,725
Payment to auditor (excluding service tax)
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Asg auditor:
Audit fee for standalone & consolidated financial statements 700,000 700,000
Certification 30,000 30,000
Reimbursernent of expenses 7492 4,926
737492 734,926
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23, Finance costs

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest expense on:
-Cash credit 1,344,472 11,155,119
-Statutory dues - 2,218,059
-Others 386740 -
QOther borrowing cos{ - 1,247,994
Bank charges 516,307 2,507,162
2,747,519 17,128,334
24.Income fax expenses
Year ended
Particlaxs March 31, 2018
{a) Income Tax expense
Current Tax -
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods {6,113,734) -
Mat Entitlement 20,198 379 -
Total tax expense 14,084,645 -
(b} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit maltiplied by India's tax rate:
Loss before income tax expense (495,977,631) (222,199,957)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 30.90% (Previous year - 30.90%) (153,257,088) (68,659,787)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in caloulating taxable income:
Impact of Depreciation 1,622,79¢ 4,313,831
Tax losses of provision for unforeseeable losses & credit losses - -
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized - -
Tax relating to earlier years (6,113,734) -
Tax losses for which no deffered income tax was recognized 151,583,392 64,345,956
Mat Entitlement 20,198,379
Other items 50,906 -
Total tax expense 14,084,645 -
{c) Tax Losses:
Hnused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 894,675,948 143,040,153
Potential tax benefit (@ tax rate 276,454,868 44,199 407
25. Earning per share (EPS)
The foilowing reflects the loss and share data uged in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Toss for the Year (510,062,276} (222,199,957
Less : Dividends on convertible preference shares and tax thereon 200 200
Net loss for caleulation of basic and diluted EPS (510,062,476) (222,200,157)
Number Number|
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating hasic and dituted EPS 6,225,000 6,225,000
EPS - Basic and Diluted (in ) (81.94) (35.69)

ended March 3¢, 2018 and March 31, 2017

The potentiat equity shares resulting from conversion of CCPS are anti-dilutive in mature, as the company has incurred losses during the years

(this space has intentionally been left blankj
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26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. All permanent employees who are in continuous service
for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the mumber of years of service. The gratuity pian is a funded plan and the Company makes
contribution to recegnized funds (in form of insurance policies) in India.

A) The foliowing tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss, the funded status and the amounts
recognized in the balance sheet for the plan.

Present vatue of  Fair value of

obligations pian assets Net amount
April 1,2087 22,328,200 {287,648) 22,040,512
Current service cost 237 479 . 237 475
Adjustment - (73,789) (73,789)
Interest expensest{income) 1,562,974 {25,303) 1,537,671
Total amount recognised in profit or luss 1,800,453 (99,092) 1,701,361
Remeasurements: .
- Due 1o changes in financial assumptions (839,850) _ (839,850)
- Due to experience adjustments 22,407,930 72 407,930
- Return on assets (excluding interest income) - 4.519 4519
Total amonnt recognised in OCI 21,568,080 4,519 21,572,599
Benefits payments (839,850) _ (839,850)
Employer contributions R R ;
March 31, 2018 1,720,723 (391,299) 1,329,424

Present value of  Fair value of
obiigations plan assets Net amount
April 1, 2016 23,652,052 (268,867) 23,383,185
Current service cost 3.387.858 . 1387 858
Interest expenses/(income) 1,655,644 {18,821) 1,636,823
Total amount recopnised in profit or less 5,043,502 (18,321) 5,024,681
Remeasurements: i
- Due to changes it financial assumplions (767 645) _ (767,643)
-~ Due to experience adjustmens 7.134.999 _ 7.134.699
- Return on assets (excluding interest income) B . _
Total amount recognised in OCI 6,367,354 - 5,367,354
Benefits payments _ B .
Employer cortributions _ . R
March 31, 2017 22,328,200 (287,688) 22,040,512
The plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
. Gratuity
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Investments with insurer (SBI Life Insurance Compasy Limited} 100% 100%
Gratuity and other post-employment beneiit plans
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown befow:
. Gratuity

Particulars

31 March 2018 March 31, 2017

Discount rate T% 7.00%
Expected rate of returmn on assets ™ 7.00%
Employee turnover 30% 30.00%
Future salary increases &% 6.00%

Mortaiity

[ALM 2006-08 TALM 2006-08

Ultimate

Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarizl valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,. promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

The overal} expected rate of return on assets is determ
is to be settied, There has been significant change
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Sensitivity Analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determinaticn of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase rate. Effect of change in

mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensitivity anatysis presented below may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be comelated. The resuits of
sensitivity analysis are given below:

ﬂssumptinn Change in assumptions Impact on defined benefit obiigation I
Discount rate Increase by 100 basis points Decrease by 3%
Decrease by 100 basis points Increage by 3%
Salary growth rate Increase by 100 basis points Increase by 3%
Decrease by 100 basis points Decrease by 3%
Withdrawal rate Increase by 100 basis points Decrease by 0%
Decrease by 100 basis poinis Increase hy 0%
Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed o a number of risks, the most significant of which i the sisk of change in the interest rates due to market
volatifity. A decrease therein will increase plan liabilities, Apart from the interest rate, the other significant risks associated with defined benefit pians are inflation
risk, econemtic environmesnt and regulatory changes. '

The Company manages its investment positions to achieve fong-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. The
designated trust actively monitors how the duration and expected yield of the investments are matchinyg the expected cash outflows arising from the employee benefit

abligations. The Company has not changed its processes to manage its risks from previous perieds.

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits s a3 follows:

Period Amount

Within one year 458,794
Between 1 - 2 years 560,326
Between 2 — 5 years 1,792,209

B) The company recognizes the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on acturial valuation. The expenses recognized in the
Statement of Profit & loss and the feave encashment liability at the beginning and at the end of the year:

2017-2018 2016-2017
At the beginaing of the period 16,194,205 18,792,070
Curent service cost 144,100 3,122,386
Interest expenses/{income) 1,133,594 1,315,445
Totat amount recognized in profit or loss 1,277,694 4,437,831
Remeasurements:
-Due to changes in firancial assumptions - 553473
-Due te experience adjustments : 8,361,135 (7,589,169)
-Retumn on assets(excluding interest income)
Total amount recognised in OCI 8,361,135 {7,035,696)
Benefits payments (24,909,895) -
Employer contributions
At the end of the period . 923,139 16,194,205
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27. Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOF)

The Company has provided vasous share based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the relevant details of the

scheme are as follows:

Particulars ESOP2015 | ESOP2012 | ESOP201f | ESOP2009 | ESOP 2008
Date of Board of Dircctoss approval Feb 23,2015 | Nov1,2012 | Sep2L, 2011 | Dec1,2009 | Apr7,2008
Date of Shazeholder’s approval Teb 23,2015 MNov 1, 2012 Sep 21, 2011 Dec 1,2009 Apr 7, 2008

Vesting period

Over the perod of four years

Exercise pericd

Three Years from the date of vesting/listing whichever is later

Vesting conditions

Continuous association with the Company

The details of activity under ESOP 2008 have been sumenarised below:

2017-18 2016-17
. Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Pasticulars options average optons average
exercise price exercige price
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 31,140 100
- 11,500 32
- 80,000 385
78,000 100 93,000 100
102,028 105 112,914

Geanted duning the year - 105 - 105

Fxercised during the year - - - -
Fxpired during the year - 31,140 100
- 11,500 32
- 80,000 385
78,000 100 15,000 100
102,028 105 10,886 105
Qurstanding/exercisable at the end of the year - - 100
- - 32
- - 385
- 78,000 100
- 102,028 105

“The weighted average share price ar the date of exercise for stock options was Rs. Nil {previous year Rs. 186.86).

The weighted average share price for the year over which stock options were exercised was Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 186.86}.

The weighted average shate price at the date of execise is not applicable since 1o options are exercised {previous year not applicable since no option were

cxercised).

For the purpose of valuation of the options granted under ESOP 2008 upto the year ended 31 Macch 2018, the compensation cost celating to emplayee

stock options, calculated as per the intrinsic value method, is Nil,

{this space has been infentionatly left blank)
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28. Leases

Operating lease: Company as lessee

The Company has taken office premises under cperating lense agreements. expiring, within 12 months .Both the parties have the option o terminate the
lease after the expiry by giving other party three month prior written notice. It is renewable at the end of eleven Months with the mutual consent of both
the lessor and lessee, Lease payment charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year amounted to Rs. 4,000,0000 (Rs. 66,296,331).

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable cperating leases are as

Particulars March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Within one year

- 8,933,333
After one year but not more than five years

- 8,033,333

29, Interest in other entities

(a) Subsidizries

The Company’s interest and share in subsidiaries are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, the proportion of ownership interesis held equals the voting
rights held by the Company, directly or indirectly, and the country of incorporation ur registration is also their principal place of business.

Name of entity Country of Ownership interest as at
incorporation 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Subsidiaries % %

Punj Lioyd Engineering Pte. Limited Singapore 100 100

PL Delta Technologies Limited@ India 100 100

PLE TCI Engineering Limited India 50 50

AeroEuro Engineering India Private Limited India t00 -

(b) Interest in Joint Ventures

The Company’s interest and share in associates and joint ventures are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, the proportion of ownership interests heid
equals the voting rights held by the Company, direcily or indirectly, and the country of incorporation or Tegistration is also their principal piace of business.

Name of entity Natur_e of Ownership Orwaership interest as at
operations interest as at § March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
% %
AeroFuro Engineering India Private Limited Designing in

India - 50
2EI0SPace Sector )

Engineering and|
. design .

PLE TC{ Engenhania Ltda consultancy Brazil 49 49

services

(@ Tintity held with an iatention of disposal in near future.

The Company’s shaze of the assets, liabifities, income and expenses of AeroFuro Engineesing India Private Limited and PEE TCI Engenhada LTDA at
the year end are as foliows: :

AeroBuro Engincering India by ¢ 101 pygegharia LTDA
Private Limited

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2047  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current assets - 2,229 380 129,866 129,866
Non-current assets - 2,182,125 - -
Current liabilities - {14,100,288) - -
Non-current fiabilities - (327,555) - -
Equity - (10,016,337) 129,866 129,866
Revenue - 8,028,437 - -
Depreciation and amortisation - {598,818) - -
Employee benefits expense - (4,780,239} - -
Finance and other expenses - (3,544,866) - -

Loss for the year - (895,486} -
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30. Segment information

Business segment

The Company’s business activity falls within a single business segment i.¢. Engineering Services. Therefore, segment reporting in terms of Ind AS 108 on
Segmental Reporiing is not applicable.
Geographical segments¥

Although, the Company's major operaring divisions are managed on a worldwide basis, they operate in two pdncipal geographical areas of the world, in
India, its home country and the other countries.

The following table presents revenue from operations, trade receivable and unbilled revenue(work-in-progress) regarding geographical segments as at
March 31, 2018 and Maxch 31, 2017:

Particulars Revenne Unbilled revenue

(work in progress) Trade receivables

March 31, 2018 |March 31, 2017) March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 [March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

India 54,074,042 116,226,655 25,307,115 84,726,790 45,001,163 108,931,071
Other countries 11485851 478,520,745 1,203,825 229,409,153 11,963,301 505,141,380
Total 65,559,893 594,747,400 26,511,540 314,135,943 56,064,464 614,072,460

* All the significant assets other than trade receivables and uabilled cevenue (work in progress) are sitated in India and hence, separzte amounts for
assets / acditions to assets have not been furnished.

(this pace bas been intentionally foft blank)
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31 Related party disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties where control exists

Holding company Punj Lloyd Limited
Subsidiaries Punj Lloyd Engineering Pte Limited

PL Delta Technologies Limited

PLE TCI Engineering Limited

AeroBuro Engineering India Prvate Limited
Joint Venture PLE TCI Engenhasia LTDA.

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year or in previous year

Fellow subsidiaries

PT Punj Lloyd Indonesia

Punj Lloyd — Oit & Gas (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Punj Lloyd Construction Contracting Company Limited
Punj Lloyd Engineers and Constructors Pte Limited
Punj Lloyd International Limited

Punj Lloyd Sdn Bhd

Key management personnel:
Chairman

CEO

COO

{a) Transaction with related parties

Mr. Atul Punj
M. Badrd Krishnan (upto Sep 15, 2017)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Bhargava {upto Feb 02, 2018)

2017-18

2016-17

Sales and purchase of goods and services

With Holding Comipany:
Contract revenue
Rental income
Consultancy expense
Rental Expense
Interest Bxpense

With subsidiaries:
Contract revenue
Software Expense

With Fellow subsidiaries:
Conftact revenue

With KMP
Employee benefit expenses

9,955,705

(40,000,000}

19,906,934

8,979,898

14,003,166

251,698,265

(52,645,161)

264,948,484

4,133,878

22,682,696

(b) Outstanding balances

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Holding Company:
Trade receivable 502,355,581
Other payable (Due to related parties) (220,891,033)
Mobilization advance (1,079,086) (26,138,847}
Subsidiaries
Loan receivabic 2,264.576 1,780,482
Trade receivable - 126,358,604
Other payable (Due to related parties) . (52,769,860)
Investment 32,633,243 57,987,900
Mobilization advance (9,597,670}
Fellow Subsidiaries
Loan receivable
Trade receivable 1,274,660 41,843,814
Other payable (Due to related patties) (55,155,793)
Joint Ventures
Investmnent held for sale 155,576, 155,576




PL Engincering Limited
Notes to financial statements year ended March 31, 2618
(All amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

32, Contingent liahilities

Particuiars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Service tax demand 7,995,321 4,613,189

33. The disclosures as per provisions of Clauses 39, 40 and 42 of ladian Accounting Standard 11 - ‘Construction Contracts” are as under:

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

a} Contract revenue recognised as revenue in the period (clause 38 (a)} 65,559,893 594,747 4C0
h) Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits upta the reporting date on contract under progress 858,100,295 1,374,231,946
¢) Advance received on contract under progress (clause 39 (b)) 1,562,533 44,904,457
d) Retention amounts on contract under progress (clause 32 {c )) - -

¢) Gross amount due from customers for contract work as an asset (clause 41 26,511,540 314,135,942
f) Gross amount due to customers for contract work as a liability {clause 41 (b)) - 13,201,620

34.The Company has invested a sum of T 12,500,000 in the equity shares of a joint venture company. Further, the Company has receivabies by way of loans and
advances of ¥ 22,394,775 (previous year ¥ 22,399,788) from the said joint venture company. As per the latest audited financial statements of the said company,
accumutated losses of the said company have resulted in erosion of its net worth completely. However, considering the long term business plan of the joint venture
company, including the forecasts of profitability of operations, the Company is of the view that there is no other than temporary diminution in the vatue of investment
and accordingly, no provision is considered necessary in the financial statements at this stage on the above account.

35, Assets of Nil (previous vear ¥ 20,198,377) recognised by the Company as 'Minimum alternative tax Credit Entitlement' under the 'loans and advances', in respect
of minimum alternate tax payment for current and earlier years, represents that portion of Minimum alternative tax credit which can be recovered and set off in
subsequent periods based on provision of Section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management based on the futire projections, is of the view that there

would be sufficient taxable income in foreseeable future, which will enabie the Company to utilise Minimum alternative tax credit assets.

36. The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year
end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under the law/ Indian Accounting Standards for the material foreseeable losses on
such long term contracts (including derivative contracts, if any) has been made in the books of accounts

37. The Company has internationat & Domestic transaction with 'Associated Enterprises' which are subject lo Transfer Pricing regulations in India. The Management
of the Company is of the opinion that such transactions with Associated Enterprises are at arm's length and hence in compliance with the aforesaid legislation.
Consequently, this will not have impact on the financial staternents, particularly on account of tax expense and that of provision of taxation,
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38. Financial instruments
(a) PFinancial instruments by category

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Particulars

FVTOCI Amortized cost TVTOCI Amortized cost
Financial assets
Non-current investments 32,633,245 - 57,987,902 .
investment held for sale 155,576 - 155,576 -
Trade receivables - 56,964,464 - 614,072,460
Loans - 5,350,851 - 91,994 975
Cash and cash equivalents - 23,558,298 - 21,899,687

32,788,821 85,873,613 58,143,478 727,967,122
Tinancial liabilities -
Borrowings - 2,112,114 - 35,676,560
Trade payables - 168,851,249 - 499,331,851
Other financial liabiiities - - - 590,183

- 170,963,363 - 535,598,594

(b) ¥air value hierarchy

Financial instrsments are classified into three ievels in order to provide an indication about the relinbility of the inputs used in determining the fair values.

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1: Where fair vatue is based on quoted prices from active market.
1evel 2: Where fair value is based on significant direct or indirect observable market inputs.
Level 3: Where fair value is based on one or more significant input that is not based on observable market data.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2018
Non-current investments -
Ungueted - - 32,633,245 32,633,245
Investment held for sale
Unguoted 155,576 155,576
Taotal - - 32,788,321 32,788,821
As at March 31, 2017 -
Mon-current investments -
Unquoted - - 57,987,902 57,987,902
Non-current investments -
Unguoted - - 155,576 155,576
Total - - 58,143,478 58,143,478

There are no transfers between any levels during the year.

(c) Fair value of financial instruments measared at amortized cost

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at amortized cost, disclosed in note (a) above, approximades to their fair vatues. Accordingly,
the fair values of such instruments have not been disclosed separately.

(d) Valuation techniques and processes used to determine fair value

For unquated investments, fair value is determined based on the present values, calculated using internationally accepted valuation prineiples, by

independent valuers

(e} Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

Significant unobservable inputs ased in Level 3 fair value measurement.

Investments - Unqaoted

Significant unobservable
As at itputs®
Fair value Earnings Risk adjusted
growth rate | discount rate
(%) (%}
March 31, 2018 32,788,821 0-4.00 16
March 31, 2017 58,143,478 0-4.00 §.50-10

* There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

Lo
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{f) Reconciliation of financial instruments categorized under Level 3

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

Opening 58,143,478 117,879,778
Addition - -
Gains/(losses) recognized in OCL (25,354,657} 73,822 364
Closing 32,788,321 191,7G2,142]

39. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal finarcial instruments are as foliows:
Financiai assets; Investments, Cash and bank balance, Loans, Trade and other receivables,
Financial liabilities: Borrowings, Trade and other payables.

The main purpose of these Financial instruments is to regulate, finance and support the Company’s operations

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as credit, liquidity and market risk, An experienced and qualified team ensures that all financial
risks are identified, measured and maraged in accordance with the Compaay’s policies and risk objectives.

A, Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its abiigations under a financial insfrument or customer contract, leading fo a firanciaf loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade and other receivables) and from: its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and other financial instruments.

A.). Trade receivables

Trade receivables are contractual amounts due from these customers for works certified, Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and aze generally on

30 to 45 days credit, depending upon contractual terms. The management evaluates the outstanding receivables on a periodic basis and provides for the
impairment loss based on the established policy.

The Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for recognition of impairment loss ailowance on its trade receivables. For the
purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, the Company estimates irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the receivable
balances, clubbed with, historical experience with the customer and/or the indusiry in which the customer operates and assessment of litigation, if
applicable, Receivables are written off when they are no more deemed collectible.

Though the Company executes projects with repeat customers but there is no significant customer level concentration of the credit risk as at any of the
reported periods, Further, there is no concentrated risk based on the location where the Company operates,

A2, Other financinl assets

Loans and receivable from related parties are periodically reviewed by the management in conjunction with the re-measured fair values of the Company’s
investments in those parties. Where the carrying amount of any receivable exceeds the re-measured fair value of investment, an impairment loss, to that
extent, is provided for in the financial statements.

Cash and bank balances are managed by the Company’s treasury department. Concentration risk is constantly monitored to mitigate financial Joss.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the financial assets as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 is to the extent of
their respective carrying amounts as disclosed in note 6,7,10,11,12.

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able 1o meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable
losses. The Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements, both immediate and long-term,
The finance needs are manitored and managed by the Company’s treasury department, in consultation with the project teams and management. The
Company takes support from its seeured lenders to finance and suppest the Company’s operations.

The Company’s objective is to maintain o balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans {fong-term and working
capital loans), The working capital loans are generally revolving in naturc and linked with the current assets of the projects. Of the total long-term debts
"Nil" is payabie at March 31, 2018 and nil % payable in less than one year as at March 2018 (March 31,2017: 41% Rs 14,13,033 } based on the carrying
value of such borrowings refiected in the financial statements,

Other financial liabilities, like trade and other payables, matures predominantly within one year.

C .Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruenent will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of tisk; interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk.

The sensitivity analysis as shown below relates Lo the position as at March 3%, 2018 and March 31, 2017. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or less item
is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financisl liabilities held at March 31, 2018 and

March 31, 2017.
»} G
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C.1 Interest rate risk

[nterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rale tisk. As at March 31,
2018 and March 31, 2017, the Campany’s borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in INR and USD.

The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to inierest rafe risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neither the casrying mount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

C.1.1. Tnterest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowing fo interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
As at March | Asat March
31,2018 31,2018
Total borrowings * - 36,252,907
Less:Fixed rate borrowings - (1,413.033)
Variable rate borowings - 34,839,874

*exciuding interest accrued on borrowings.

C.1.2. Tnterest rate sensitivity
With afl other variabies held constant, increase of 50 basis points (bps) will result in a loss of Rs.Nil before tax {Previous year: Rs. 174,199} and a
decrease of 5¢ bps will result in a gain of Rs. Nil before tax {Previous year: Rs. 174,199).

C.2, Forcign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s un-hedged foreign currency exposuze of its Indian
operations and Company’s net investment in its foreign operations.

€.2.1. Foreign carrency risk exposure

The Companv’s significant exposure to foreien currency risk at the end of the reported periods. expressed in INR. are as follows:
As at March 31, 2018

Particulars USD GRP SGD QAR EUR
Financial assets 33 49,133 122,331
Financial liabilities {230,104)

Net investment in foreign operations
Net exposure (230,072) - - 49,133 122,331

As at March 31, 2017

Particulars . UsD GBP SG:D MYR EUR
Financial assets 478,351,211 - - - 26,790,749
Financial liabilities (223,081,391) (2,442) - (137,994) -
Net investment in foreign operations - - - - -
Net exposure 250,269,820 (2,442) - (137,994) 26,790,749

C.2.2. Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign
currency chanpes for alt other currencies is not material. :

Currency Change in Profit/(loss) effect before tax
currency 31-Miar-18 31-Mar-17
usk 5% 12,513,49%
GBP 5% {122)
SGD 5% -
MYR 5% (6,900)
EUR 5% 1,339,537

A decrease of 5% in the above currency’s exchange rates would result in an equivalent reciprocal effect.
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40 .Capital Management

Risk managemeni;

For the purpose of the capital management, capital includes the issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves atiributable to the
equity holders. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concemn, so that it can continue fo

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio, which is, net debt {totat borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by totai equity
(as shown in the balance sheet) plus net debt. Borrowings include long-term borrowings, current maturities of jong-term borrowings, short-term
borrowings and interest accrued thereon, The Company’s strategy is lo maintain a gearing ratio within 100%, The gearing ratios were as follows:

As at March 31,| Asat March 31,
2018 2087
Borrowings other than convertible preference shares - 35,676,560
Less :- Cash and cash equivalents 23,558,298 21,899,687
Net Debis (23,558,298) 13,776,873
Equity (1,706,502) 507,201,556
Equity & Net Debt (25,264,800) 520,978,429
Gearing Ratio 93%, 3%

Loan covenants:

Under the terms of some borrowing facilities,the company is required to comply certain financiat covenant. The company is meeting its financial

coavenants attached to the interest bearing leans & borrowing that define capital structure requirements

41. Amount i consolidated Financila are presented INR unless other stated
42. Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassificd where neceesary to confirm to this year classification.
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